
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 
dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Date / Dyddiad: 28 Awst 2020

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

Cyd Bwyllgor Amlosgfa Llangrallo

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cyd Bwyllgor Amlosgfa Llangrallo yn o bell trwy Skype For Business ar d ar Dydd 
Gwener, 4 Medi 2020 am 14:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 8
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 06/03/2020

4. Adolygiad Blynyddol o Amcanion Cynllun Busnes 2019/20 9 - 18

5. Cyfleusterau cwrt blodau 19 - 22

6. Gwobr Baner Werdd 23 - 32

7. Gwasanaeth Nadolig 33 - 34

8. Pandemig covid-19 35 - 40

9. Datganiad Cyfrifyddu Blynyddol 2019-20 a Datganiad Monitro Refeniw 1 Ebrill i 
30 Mehefin 20 

41 - 58

10. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 

Public Document Pack



y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio

Dosbarthiad:
Cynghorwyr:
G Cox
S Edwards
G Hopkins
G John
AA Pucella
JC Spanswick
R Turner
E Venables
DBF White
JE Williams
RE Young



CYD BWYLLGOR AMLOSGFA LLANGRALLO - DYDD GWENER, 6 MAWRTH 2020

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYD BWYLLGOR AMLOSGFA LLANGRALLO A GYNHALIWYD 
YN YSTAFELLOEDD PWYLLGOR 2/3 - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-
Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB DYDD GWENER, 6 MAWRTH 2020, AM 14:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd RE Young – Cadeirydd 

G Cox S Edwards G John JC Spanswick
R Turner E Venables

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

JE Williams

Swyddogion:

Philip Beaman Rheolwr Man Gwyrdd a Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth
Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Joanna Hamilton Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth a Chofrestrydd
Eilish Thomas Rheolwr Cyllid – Rheoli Ariannol a Chau 

65. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Dim.

66. DERBYN Y COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: I dderbyn Cofnodion cyfarfod Cyd-bwyllgor Amlosgfa Llangrallo â'r 
dyddiad 13 Medi 2019, fel cofnod gwir a manwl gywir.

67. UWCHRADDIO SYSTEM GYFRYNGAU A CHERDDORIAETH GYFRIFIADUROL Y 
CAPEL

Cyflwynodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth adroddiad, a'i ddiben 
oedd cynghori'r Cyd-bwyllgor ar y gwelliannau gofynnol i systemau cyfryngau a 
cherddoriaeth gyfrifiadurol Capel Crallo a Chapel Coety yn Amlosgfa Llangrallo a cheisio 
cymeradwyaeth i wario ar gael rhai newydd yn eu lle, er mwyn darparu cyfleuster mwy 
modern i ddefnyddwyr y gwasanaeth profedigaeth.

Darparodd yr adroddiad ychydig o wybodaeth gefndirol, ac yn dilyn hynny, cynghorodd  
Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth fod Wesley Media Ltd wedi 
datblygu cynhyrchion a rhaglenni arbenigol addas i amlosgfeydd sy'n bodloni 
disgwyliadau pobl mewn galar yn yr 21ain Ganrif. O ystyried ei ddibynadwyedd profedig 
yn y maes arbenigol hwn caiff ei ddefnyddio gan y rhan fwyaf o Amlosgfeydd y DU a gan 
bob un o'r Amlosgfeydd gerllaw, fel y cyfeirir ato ar ffurf pwynt bwled ym mharagraff 4.1 
yr adroddiad.

Aeth Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth ymlaen i gadarnhau bod 
Wesley Media yn darparu pecyn caledwedd cyfrifiadurol addasedig arbenigol i bob 
capel, wedi'i lwytho â meddalwedd weithredol gyda mynediad at ystod ddiddiwedd o 
gerddoriaeth yn cynnwys arddulliau cyfoes, emyn-donau a chlasurol. Mae'r feddalwedd 
hefyd wedi'i rhyngwynebu i sicrhau nad oes lle ar gyfer camgymeriadau. Mae Wesley 
Media hefyd yn darparu recordiadau USB o wasanaethau angladd ac yn trefnu 
gweddarllediadau ar gyfer y rheiny nad ydynt yn gallu mynychu'r gwasanaeth angladd. 
Yn ogystal mae'n darparu teyrngedau gweledol sydd wedi'u teilwra i ofynion teuluoedd 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CYD BWYLLGOR AMLOSGFA LLANGRALLO - DYDD GWENER, 6 MAWRTH 2020

mewn galar, y gellir eu lawrlwytho ar gyfrifiadur cerddoriaeth i gapeli Wesley Media i'w 
chwarae ar eu sgriniau teyrnged-gytûn. Ychwanegodd y rhoddir sylw i bob agwedd ar y 
gwasanaeth angladd, o drefn y gwasanaeth i acwsteg y lleoliad unigol, i natur sensitif 
seremonïau personol.

Ychwanegodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth, er bod 
cerddoriaeth organ yn dal i fod yn gyfeiliant poblogaidd i wasanaethau a bod yr holl ganu 
emynau yn cael ei gyfeilio gan organ bib yr Amlosgfa, gofynnir am fathau eraill o 
gerddoriaeth yn aml, yn lle cerddoriaeth organ neu i ychwanegu ati.

Ymgynghorwyd ag Wesley Media ym mis Rhagfyr 2019 a chynhaliwyd adolygiad 
ganddynt o'r system gyfryngau a cherddoriaeth bresennol yn yr Amlosgfa. Amlinellodd 
eu hadroddiad dilynol y gallent gynnig yr holl gyfleusterau modern sydd eu hangen ar yr 
Amlosgfa, fel y disgrifir ym mharagraff 4.5 yr adroddiad.

Byddai ychwanegu sgriniau-gytûn Wesley Media yn y ddau gapel yn galluogi'r bobl 
mewn galar i wylio'r teyrngedau gweledol y mae Wesley Media wedi'u fformatio yn unol 
â'u gofynion. Dyma wasanaeth a ddarperir gan Amlosgfeydd gerllaw a osododd system 
Wesley Media yn ddiweddar gyda mantais yr ychwanegiadau mwy modern hyn at 
wasanaeth Wesley Media. Byddai gosod sgriniau-gytûn Wesley Media ym mhen uchaf a 
phen isaf y clawstr yn arwain at Gapel Crallo, yn manteisio ar gamera gweddarlledu 
Wesley Media a fyddai ymlaen yn awtomatig gyda theyrngedau gweledol, gan alluogi 
galarwyr sy'n sefyll yn yr ardal hon yn ystod ymgynulliadau mawr, i wylio'r gwasanaeth 
yn y capel yn hytrach na gwrando ar y siaradwyr yn unig. Byddai hyn yn caniatáu iddynt 
gymryd mwy o ran yn y gwasanaeth angladd.

I gloi ei chyflwyniad, cadarnhaodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau 
Profedigaeth, o ganlyniad i anghenion unigryw'r gwasanaeth Amlosgfa a natur arbenigol 
y ddarpariaeth gerddoriaeth ddigidol, y byddai Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contract Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn gymwys, gydag ildiad yn cael ei gymhwyso 
drwy'r Cynllun Dirprwyo, yn unol â darpariaeth 3.2.3.

Gofynnodd Aelod i'r Swyddog a oedd cynllun wrth gefn, pe bai'r cyfarpar hen neu 
newydd a'r cyfleusterau cysylltiedig yn methu am unrhyw reswm.

Cadarnhaodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth fod gan yr 
Amlosgfa stoc o gofau bach USB a chryno ddisgiau ar y safle bob amser y gellid eu 
defnyddio i ddarparu cerddoriaeth a bod teuluoedd bob amser yn barod i gyflenwi'r rhain 
hefyd. Pe bai unrhyw ddarpariaethau llai newydd at y diben hwn yn ofynnol, yna gellid 
cyflawni hyn yn gyflym gydag isafswm cost, yn dilyn ymarfer caffael syml, sydyn.

Gofynnodd Aelod a oedd y gwaith sy'n angenrheidiol yn mynd i gael ei gynnal yn y 
flwyddyn ariannol hon neu'r flwyddyn ariannol nesaf a sut fyddai'r gwaith yn effeithio ar 
fusnes yr Amlosgfa.

Cynghorodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth y byddai'r gwaith yn 
cael ei gynnal yn unol â chynigion Cynllun Busnes 2020/21, ac y gobeithiwyd, y byddai'r 
gwaith sy'n angenrheidiol, cyn belled ag sy'n bosibl ac ymarferol, yn cael ei amserlennu 
o amgylch angladdau/amlosgiadau. Y sefyllfa waethaf bosib, ychwanegodd fyddai'r 
posibilrwydd o orfod cau'r prif Gapel dros dro er mwyn cwblhau'r gwaith ar amser, gyda 
Chapel Coety yn cael ei ddefnyddio yn ei le yn ystod y cyfnod hwn.   

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cymeradwyo gwariant ar y gwaith a 
amlinellir yn yr adroddiad gan Wesley Media Ltd, am gyfanswm o 
£41,696, ar y cyd â chymeradwyo'r Cynllun Busnes.

Page 4



CYD BWYLLGOR AMLOSGFA LLANGRALLO - DYDD GWENER, 6 MAWRTH 2020

68. CYNLLUN BUSNES A FFIOEDD YR AMLOSGFA

Cyflwynodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth adroddiad yn ceisio 
cymeradwyaeth y Cyd-bwyllgorau o'r Cynllun Busnes a'r rhaglen wariant ar gyfer 2020-
21, sy'n cynnwys cynnydd arfaethedig i ffioedd amlosgi.

Cynghorodd fod Cynllun Busnes yn cael ei gyflwyno'n flynyddol i'r Cyd-bwyllgor ei 
gymeradwyo, sy'n cynnwys amcanion y gwasanaeth a phrosiectau cynnal a chadw a 
gwella arfaethedig, i wella a chynnal tir ac adeiladau'r Amlosgfa ar gyfer y cyfnod sydd i 
ddod.

Cadarnhaodd mai cyfanswm yr amlosgiadau ar gyfer 2019 oedd 1,625, yn cynnwys 
1,004 o Ben-y-bont ar Ogwr, 143 o Fro Morgannwg a 400 o Rondda Cynon Taf, gyda 78 
ddim yn preswylio yno. Mae cytundeb gydag Ysbyty Tywysoges Cymru ar gyfer amlosgi 
gweddillion ffetysol anhyfyw (NVF) wedi arwain at 11 amlosgiad cymunedol ychwanegol. 
Trefnwyd 8 amlosgiad NVF arall yn uniongyrchol â theuluoedd. Mae cofnodion 
ystadegol ar gyfer y cyfnod o fis Ionawr i fis Rhagfyr 2018 a 2019 i'w cael yn y Cynllun 
Busnes er mwyn cymharu. 

Mae'r Cynllun Busnes Lefel Gwasanaeth arfaethedig ar gyfer 2020-21 ynghlwm yn 
Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, ac mae hwn yn amlinellu amcanion y gwasanaeth ar gyfer y 
cyfnod. Rhoddodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth grynodeb 
ohono er budd yr Aelodau drwy echdynnu rhai o'r elfennau pwysicaf ohono.

Roedd y Cynllun Busnes yn ymdrin â'r meysydd allweddol canlynol yn dilyn ei 
gyflwyniad:

 Adran 1 - Gwasanaethu ein Cymuned
 Adran 2 - Datblygiadau i'r Gwasanaeth
 Adran 3 - Cyllidebau Refeniw
 Adran 4 - Adolygiad o'r Cynllun Busnes
 Adran 5 - Cysylltiadau

Nododd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth fod cost amlosgi'r 
Amlosgfa yn safle 267 allan o 299 o awdurdodau amlosgi, mewn tabl cynghrair o ffioedd 
cenedlaethol a gyhoeddwyd yn haf 2019 gan Gymdeithas Amlosgi Prydain Fawr (lle 
mae'r gost uchaf yn cael ei nodi gyntaf).  Argymhellwyd bod y gost amlosgi yn cael ei 
chynyddu gan lefel chwyddiant o £680.70 i £696.40. Mae hyn yn seiliedig ar gynnydd 
cyffredinol mewn ffioedd o 2.3% (1% yn ogystal â'r Mynegai Pris Defnyddwyr ar 1.3% yn 
unol â'r ffigyrau mwyaf diweddar a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Rhagfyr 2019).  Mae'r tabl ym 
mharagraff 4.3 yr adroddiad yn cyflwyno cymhariaeth o ffioedd amlosgi cyfredol (2019-
20) amlosgfeydd gerllaw.

Nododd Aelod o'r adroddiad fod amlosgiadau am ddim i'r rheiny dan 18 oed ar 
ddyddiau'r wythnos, ond nid ar gyfer unrhyw amlosgiadau ar gyfer y categori oedran 
hwn ar ddydd Sadwrn.

Cynghorodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth mai dim ond y 
gwasanaeth sylfaenol safonol oedd am ddim o dan y Memorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth 
(MOU) ar ddyddiau'r wythnos i'r rheiny dan 18 oed, lle ar ddydd Sadwrn codir ffi 
ychwanegol i dalu am gostau staffio'r Amlosgfa i gefnogi a/neu weinyddu gwaith amlosgi 
y tu allan i oriau dyddiau'r wythnos arferol. Ychwanegodd fod rhai amlosgiadau ar ddydd 
Sadwrn, er hynny.   

Nododd Aelod gyda phleser fod yr estyniad i'r Cwrt Blodau bellach yn mynd rhagddo.

Page 5



CYD BWYLLGOR AMLOSGFA LLANGRALLO - DYDD GWENER, 6 MAWRTH 2020

Cadarnhaodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth fod caniatâd 
cynllunio wedi'i gadarnhau ar gyfer hyn a bod y gwaith cynllunio yn mynd rhagddo ar hyn 
o bryd. Ychwanegodd fod y cais cynllunio ar gyfer y prosiect hwn wedi cymryd mymryn 
yn hirach i'w baratoi nag y tybiwyd i ddechrau gan fod y strwythur yn Adeilad Rhestredig.

Cyfeiriodd Aelod at yr adroddiad a'r Cynllun Busnes Lefel Gwasanaeth gan gyfeirio at 
faterion megis, Asesiad Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015, Lleihau 
Mercwri ac mae Newid yn yr Hinsawdd yn rhywbeth arall sydd wedi cael ei ystyried 
hefyd wrth symud ymlaen, mewn perthynas â lefelau penodol o benderfyniadau gan yr 
Awdurdod. Gyda hyn i gyd yn y cof, gofynnodd a oedd gan yr Amlosgfa unrhyw 
gynlluniau neu weledigaeth hirdymor ynghylch cynhesu byd-eang ac allyriadau, etc.   

Cynghorodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth fod y ffordd a'r 
modd y mae'r Amlosgfa yn gweithredu mewn nifer o agweddau ar ei gwaith, yn cael eu 
llywodraethu gan ddeddfwriaeth ac yn unol â'i thrwydded y mae'n ddarostyngedig i'w 
darpariaethau. Mae Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru hefyd yn monitro Amlosgfeydd i sicrhau 
eu bod yn cydymffurfio â chanllawiau statudol ynghylch amddiffyn yr amgylchedd etc, 
mewn perthynas ag Amlosgfeydd a Chyfarpar Lleihau Mercwri, er enghraifft.

PENDERFYNWYD:                       Y dylai'r Cyd-bwyllgor:-

(1) Gymeradwyo'r Cynllun Busnes Lefel Gwasanaeth 2020-21
(2) Cymeradwyo'r ffi amlosgi ar gyfer 2020-21 o £696.40 a 

chynnydd cyffredinol yn yr holl ffioedd o 2.3%   

69. RHAGLEN GYFARFODYDD 2020-21

Cyflwynodd Rheolwr a Chofrestrydd y Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth adroddiad i'w 
gymeradwyo gan Aelodau ar gyfer y rhaglen gyfarfodydd a gynigiwyd ar gyfer y Cyd-
bwyllgor ar gyfer 2020-21.

Roedd y rhain fel a ganlyn:-

Dydd Gwener 12 Mehefin 2020 - Cyfarfod Cyffredinol Blynyddol ac Ymweliad â'r Safle;
Dydd Gwener 4 Medi 2020;
Dydd Gwener 5 Mawrth 2021.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cymeradwyo'r rhaglen gyfarfodydd ar gyfer 
2020-21, fel yr amlinellir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog.

70. Y GYLLIDEB REFENIW A GYNIGIR 2020-21

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Cyllid, Rheoli Ariannol a Chau adroddiad, a'i ddiben oedd 
cynghori'r Cyd-bwyllgor ar y perfformiad ariannol a ragfynegir ar gyfer yr Amlosgfa yn 
2019-20, a cheisio cymeradwyaeth gan y Cyd-bwyllgor ar gyfer y Gyllideb a'r Ffioedd a 
Chostau a gynigir ar gyfer 2020-21.

Roedd Tabl 1 ym mharagraff 4.1 yr adroddiad, yn dangos y sefyllfa ariannol ar 31 
Ionawr 2020 a'r alldro a ragfynegir ar gyfer 2019-20. Roedd hyn yn dangos tanwariant o 
£652,000 ar gyfer 2019-20.

Dywedodd mai £336,000 oedd y diffyg cyllidebol a ddisgwylid pan osodwyd y gyllideb. 
Dangosodd yr alldro a ragfynegir ar ddiwedd Ionawr arian dros ben o £316,000 a byddai 
hyn yn gofyn am drosglwyddo arian i Gronfeydd wedi'u Clustnodi'r Amlosgfa. 

Page 6



CYD BWYLLGOR AMLOSGFA LLANGRALLO - DYDD GWENER, 6 MAWRTH 2020

Ceir eglurhad o'r prif wahaniaethau rhwng y Gyllideb a'r Alldro a Ragfynegir ar ffurf 
pwynt bwled ym mharagraff 4.2 yr adroddiad.

Dangosodd Tabl 2 yn yr adroddiad ddadansoddiad o'r Gyllideb Cynnal a Chadw 
Arfaethedig ynghyd â'r Gwahaniaethau a'r Alldro a Ragfynegir ar gyfer 2019-20. 
Amlinellodd hyn danwariant ar gyfer y Cwrt Blodau o £272,000 a thanwariant tebyg ar 
gyfer Golau Stryd o £300,000.

Dangosodd paragraff 4.3 yr adroddiad (Tabl 3) y Gyllideb Refeniw arfaethedig ar gyfer 
2020-21. Gosodwyd ar ddiffyg o £395,000.

Roedd Tabl 4 ym mharagraff 4.6 yr adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion Gofynion Gwariant 
Cyfalaf Cynnal a Chadw Arfaethedig, a thelid am y rhain gyda'r gyllideb Costau Ariannu 
Cyfalaf a nodwyd yn Nhabl 3 y cyfeirir ato uchod.

Roedd cyllidebau incwm wedi'u paratoi gan gymryd y bydd cynnydd cyffredinol o 2.3% 
yn y ffioedd (1% yn ogystal â'r Mynegai Pris Defnyddwyr ar 1.3%), ar sail y lefelau 
presennol o weithgarwch. Roedd Tabl Ffioedd arfaethedig 2020-21 ynghlwm yn Atodiad 
1 yr adroddiad.

Dangosodd paragraff 4.8 yr adroddiad yr effaith ar falans cronnol y gyllideb arfaethedig 
ar gyfer 2020-21 yn Nhabl 5. Rhagfynegwyd y bydd balans cronnol o £1,675, 000 ar 31 
Mawrth 2020. Ystyriwyd bod balans cronfeydd wrth gefn ar 31 Mawrth 2021 yn ddigonol 
er mwyn cynnal ac amddiffyn y gwasanaeth, o ystyried galw annisgwyl neu argyfyngau.

Yn olaf, cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Cyllid, Rheoli Ariannol a Chau na fyddai angen 
benthyciad na chyfraniad gan awdurdodau etholedig ar gyfer y gwariant Cyfalaf yn 
2020-21. Byddai eitemau gwariant cyfalaf ar gyfer 2020-21 yn Nhabl 4, paragraff 4.6 yr 
adroddiad, yn cael eu hariannu'n uniongyrchol gan gyfraniadau refeniw a'r gwarged o 
flynyddoedd blaenorol.     

PENDERFYNWYD:                     Y dylai'r Cyd-bwyllgor:-

(1) Nodi'r perfformiad ariannol a ragfynegir ar gyfer 2019-20.
(2) Cadarnhau a chymeradwyo'r gyllideb refeniw  i'w mabwysiadu 

yn 2020-21.                         
(3) Cymeradwyo'r cynnydd yn y ffioedd a chostau o 1 Ebrill 2020, 

fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad.

71. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 14:55

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

4 SEPTEMBER 2020 

 

REPORT OF THE CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER 
 

 

ANNUAL REVIEW OF 2019/20 BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVES 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Joint Committee on the 

performance of Coychurch Crematorium during 2019/20. 
 

2. Connection to Corporate Well-being Objectives/Other Corporate 

Priorities 

 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-

being objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015:- 
 

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, 
work, study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused 
on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people in 
the county borough. 
 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and 

resilient –taking steps to reduce or prevent people from 
becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services. Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, 
healthy and independent lives. 
 

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources 
(financial, physical, ecological, human and technological) are 
used as effectively and efficiently as possible and support the 
creation of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 

3. Background 
 
3.1 Clause 3.2 of the Joint Authority ‘Memorandum of Agreement’ relating 

to the Coychurch Crematorium Joint Committee requires that the Joint 
Committee shall receive a report at the Annual General Meeting 
reviewing performance against the Business Plan for the preceding 
financial year. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



4. Current Situation / Proposal  
 

4.1 Appendix A identifies the performance of Coychurch Crematorium 
relating to: 

 

 Number of cremations 

 Service standards 

 Planned expenditure 

 Achievement of Business Plan objectives 
 

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules 

 
5.1 None. 
 

6. Equality Impact Assessment  
 
6.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report. 
 

7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 
 
7.1 This report provides the performance against the approved 2019-20 

business plan. As this is retrospective in nature, there is no requirement 
for a well-being statement. 

 

8. Financial Implications 

 
8.1 The Revenue budget for 2020-21 was adjusted in the 2020-21 

Business Plan to accommodate variations in the works programme as a 
result of delays in work being undertaken in 2019-20. 

 
 

9.  Recommendation(s): 
 
9.1 The Joint Committee is recommended to note the report. 
 

  

ZAK SHELL 

CLERK AND TECHNICAL OFFICER 

17TH AUGUST 2020 
 
Contact Officer: 

Contact Officer: 
Joanna Hamilton, Bereavement Services Manager & Registrar,  
Bereavement Services, Coychurch Crematorium, Coychurch, Bridgend, CF35 6AB. 
Telephone No. 01656 656605 
E-mail: joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk 

Background Papers:  Business Plan Report to the Joint Committee 8th March 2019 and  
   Business Plan Report to the Joint Committee 6th March 2020. 

Page 10

mailto:joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk


APPENDIX A 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Number of cremations 
 
In 2019/20, the Crematorium carried out the following cremations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Public Satisfaction 
 
The Crematorium carries out a quarterly review of questionnaire results which feeds 
into an annual assessment of the quality of service. For 2019/20, this showed that the 
overall satisfaction level, to a standard of good or excellent, remains at 100%. Where 
necessary, the Bereavement Services Manager & Registrar has responded to the 
cremation applicant.  An analysis of the responses received is indicated below: 
 

 

 

SERVICE FOR THE BEREAVED – CREMATORIUM  

(APRIL 2019 to JUNE 2019 incl.)  

 

Responses  43 

 

During the implementation of your funeral requirements, how would you rate: 
 

 Excellent Good Average Poor 
The availability of service times 70% 28.00% 2.00%  
The arrangements on the day of the funeral 90% 10.00%   
The presentation of the cremation plot 44% 55.00%   

 

In dealing with staff how would you rate:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Literature and information given 63% 37.00%   
Presentation of personnel 67% 33.00%   
General  attitude of staff 67% 33.00%   

 

How would you rate the following conditions within cemeteries/crematorium:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Chapels 86.00% 7.00% 7.00%  
Access roads and footpaths 84.00% 16.00%   
Rose gardens and grounds 84.00% 16.00%   

CREMATIONS (residence) TOTALS 

Borough of Bridgend 1038 

Vale of Glamorgan 153 

Rhondda-Cynon-Taff 401 

Others 78 

TOTALS 1670 

CREMATORIUM ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANICAL REVIEW 2019/20 

Page 11



Grass cutting around memorials 86.00% 14.00%   
Toilets 65.00% 35.00%   
Water stations and waste bins 65.00% 35.00%   

 

     

OVERALL SATISFACTION 79.00% 21.00%   

 
 

If the cremated remains of the deceased were removed from the crematorium please 

state why:- 

 

 Interment at family grave 

 By funeral director – to be buried at a later date in family grave 

 Has a plot at Sarn Cemetery 

 Wanted at home 

 Ashes to go to Lydstep headland in Tenby – holiday home 

 Being put in the family grave 

 To be scattered elsewhere 

 To be returned to family home 

 To be laid in cemetery in Llangynwyd 

 Private interment 

 Wanted ashes at home 

 To be with the deceased’s late husband 

 To give time to consider options 

 To be nearer his home enabling family to visit 

 To be scattered at home 

 To be scattered 

 To be buried with wife 

 To be taken home where children live 

 To be buried in family plot/grave 

 To be interred at Porthcawl cemetery 

 Family personal keeping 

 To be placed with another family member’s ashes – miles  away 

 They will be scattered and returned to England 

 To be buried in local cemetery 

 Father will be made into jewellery 

 At deceased’s request 

 To carry out the wished of my wife 

 The deceased wanted to be kept at home 

 Wished to be laid under a tree un our garden 

 Mother and father’s ashes were interred together 

 To be interred at a family plot 

 Interment at Maesteg Cemetery 

 Wish to deal with this ourselves 

 
What other form of memorialisation would you like to see: - 
 

 All arranged with crematorium 

 Cards for “ashes to Glass” or other such sites/businesses 

 Availability of use for photographic/video display 
 

 

Do you have any further observations or comments: - 
 

 The organist was excellent 

 Just keep doing what you are doing with perfection on a sad occasion 

 Very grateful, thank you 

 Excellent service, thank you 

 Just to thank everyone for their help 

 Very impressed with how well manicured the whole place was 

Page 12



 Staff were fantastic in accommodating two rehearsals in the chapel prior to the actual 
ceremony. James deserves a special mention. Thank you so much 

 The pond and surrounding area make it a soothing place. There was sufficient parking 
and discreet ground staff 

 We had no direct contact with staff and have no issues nor concerns 

 Excellent. Thank you. A choir was accommodated and James the organist was great 

 Poor acoustics in the front row of the chapel 

 Lovely clean and friendly at a sad time – thank you 

 We would have liked to have had in the service a show of pictures or my mother on a 
video display 

 
 

SERVICE FOR THE BEREAVED – CREMATORIUM  

(JULY to SEPTEMBER 2019 incl.)  

 

Responses  51 

 

During the implementation of your funeral requirements, how would you rate: 
 

 Excellent Good Average Poor 
The availability of service times 76.00% 18.00% 6.00%  
The arrangements on the day of the funeral 84.00% 16.00%   
The presentation of the cremation plot 59.00% 41.00%   

 

In dealing with staff how would you rate:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Literature and information given 78.00% 22.00%   
Presentation of personnel 71.00% 29.00%   
General  attitude of staff 69.00% 31.00%   

 

How would you rate the following conditions within cemeteries/crematorium:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Chapels 88.00% 12.00%   
Access roads and footpaths 82.00% 18.00%   
Rose gardens and grounds 86.00% 14.00%   
Grass cutting around memorials 78.00% 22.00%   
Toilets 73.00% 27.00%   
Water stations and waste bins 65.00% 15.00% 10.00%  

 

     

OVERALL SATISFACTION 86.00% 14.00%   

 
 

If the cremated remains of the deceased were removed from the crematorium please 

state why:- 

 

 For personal reasons 

 I’d like her home until I can decide what I’d like to do 

 We wanted the ashes back home 

 To be returned home 

 For burial 

 Interment in family grave 

 Ashes to be scattered in a special place 

 Wish to scatter ashes elsewhere 

 Burial at cemetery 

 In the bedroom with me at the moment because we will go together when time comes 

 The ashes to be interred in church graveyard 

 My mum and dad have a plot in cemetery with family members 

 Wanted to keep them in my possession 

Page 13



 To be burial at Trealaw cemetery 

 Remains to be placed at local cemetery 

 Scattered elsewhere 

 I want, when I die to be cremated same as my loving husband and then our remains to 
be scattered together by our daughter 

 It was the wish of the deceased in his will 

 A plot had already been purchased in Maesteg Cemetery in 1987 

 Ashes to be scattered in garden 

 
What other form of memorialisation would you like to see: - 
 

 Yet to be decided with deceased’s son 
 

 

Do you have any further observations or comments: - 
 

 Coychurch was outstanding and all staff and the funeral director was outstanding very 
very good. I live in Swansea and I’d like to have a service at Coychurch Crematorium 

 We were very pleased with all aspects of the crematorium and the service provided 

 Staff were first class – thanks for your help 

 The Coychurch crematorium and its entire staff were superb. My family and I cannot 
speak highly enough of the entire experience. Thank you so much for all that was done 
at an extremely difficult time 

 Our heartfelt thanks to all for your service 

 The funeral arrangements were handled by WA Brown in Llantwit. However, the care 
from Joanna was excellent. We were very impressed and would like to thank her 

 We were all very pleased with the way the funeral arrangements were carried out 

 Not really, have always thought Coychurch Crematorium was overall one of the most 
pleasant I have attended 

 Beautiful spot, beautiful service – thank you 
 
 
 

SERVICE FOR THE BEREAVED – CREMATORIUM  

(OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2019 incl.)  

 

Responses  40 

 

During the implementation of your funeral requirements, how would you rate: 
 

 Excellent Good Average Poor 
The availability of service times 75.00% 20.00%   
The arrangements on the day of the funeral 92.00% 18.00%   
The presentation of the cremation plot 55.00% 45.00%   

 

In dealing with staff how would you rate:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Literature and information given 75.00% 25.00%   
Presentation of personnel 72.50% 27.50%   
General  attitude of staff 75.00% 25.00%   

 

How would you rate the following conditions within cemeteries/crematorium:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Chapels 90.00% 10.00%   
Access roads and footpaths 85.00% 15.00%   
Rose gardens and grounds 80.00% 20.00%   
Grass cutting around memorials 80.00% 20.00%   
Toilets 75.00% 25.00%   
Water stations and waste bins 75.00% 25.00%   

Page 14



 

     

OVERALL SATISFACTION 90.00% 10.00%   

 
 

If the cremated remains of the deceased were removed from the crematorium please 

state why:- 

 

 Ashes to be spread on mountain 

 Interment with wife at Trealaw Cemetery 

 To stay at home with me 

 To bury elsewhere 

 To be scattered at sea 

 To be scattered together with my mother 

 The deceased had his favourite place when walking 

 Half of the Ashes to Ogmore Cemetery and half to Thornhill 

 Did not want a resting place 

 Personal choice 

 To be placed in family grave 

 Cremated remains will be collected by the funeral director when ready. We will be 
disposing of them at a later date 

 Collection by Porthcawl funeral services 

 The family wishes to spread them in a place she loved to be 

 Preference for a private family scattering in chosen location 

  

 
What other form of memorialisation would you like to see: - 
 

 Those provided are adequate 

 Continuation of rose gardens 
 

 

Do you have any further observations or comments: - 
 

 None at all, everything was done with care so I would just like to thank you 

 Beautiful surroundings and are a credit to all concerned 

 Lovely service 

 The crematorium always looks its best, staff are always pleasant and helpful – cannot 
fault 

 Your crematorium is very well kept, which brings comfort to relatives of the deceased 

 Thank you for providing such a peaceful and reflective space, this allowed us to have 
the service and memorial that did our dad justice 

 I do not recall seeing staff, however, the funeral directors and vicar were excellent 

 As all of the arrangements were made by the funeral director we used, I cannot 
comment on most of these question 

 Funeral director made all arrangements with your staff. The Crematorium is kept in 
excellent condition and was a great comfort at a sad time 

 The family felt our experience exceeded our expectations 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICE FOR THE BEREAVED – CREMATORIUM  

(JAN 2020 to MARCH 2020 incl.)  

 

Responses  54 

 

During the implementation of your funeral requirements, how would you rate: 
 

 Excellent Good Average Poor 

Page 15



The availability of service times 53% 34.00% 6.00% 7.00% 
The arrangements on the day of the funeral 70% 28.00% 2.00%  
The presentation of the cremation plot 74% 26.00%   

 

In dealing with staff how would you rate:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Literature and information given 70% 28.00% 2.00%  
Presentation of personnel 69% 31.00%   
General  attitude of staff 71% 29.00%   

 

How would you rate the following conditions within cemeteries/crematorium:- 

 
 Excellent Good Average Poor 
Chapels 83.00% 17.00%   
Access roads and footpaths 77.00% 21.00% 2.00%  
Rose gardens and grounds 84.00% 16.00%   
Grass cutting around memorials 85.00% 13.00% 2.00%  
Toilets 83.00% 15.00% 2.00%  
Water stations and waste bins 78.00% 20.00% 2.00%  

 

     

OVERALL SATISFACTION 78.00% 22.00%   

 
 

If the cremated remains of the deceased were removed from the crematorium please 

state why:- 

 

 A sample of the ashes kept at home for memories 

 Want to scatter them elsewhere 

 To be placed where the deceased would wish them to be 

 Wish to scatter remains in the sea 

 To be placed with deceased parents in Talygarn 

 Private interment at Laleston Cemetery 16/03/20 

 To rest at home 

 Because I wanted them at home 

 Deceased wishes to be scattered on Caerau mountain 

 To scatter 

 To scatter elsewhere 

 The remains will be going to Northumberland with myself 

 We’re making arrangements to take dad to Liverpool as he’s originally from there 

 To be put in a plot with her husband at local cemetery 

 Returned home 

 To be interred in her husband’s grave 

 Being kept by family 

 To be interred at Glyntaff Crematorium 

 To be put with my mother’s ashes 

 To be kept in the area which I plan to move to in the near future 

 He wished to have them scattered 

 For family to scatter where deceased wanted 

 They will be scattered with my mother’s ashes in Margam Crematorium 

 Ashes being interred in grave 

 Ashes of my wife are kept by me at home 

 They are to be kept at home address 

  

 
What other form of memorialisation would you like to see: - 
 

 I cannot think of any other 

 None, everything to a high standard 

 Everything covered 

Page 16



 

Do you have any further observations or comments: - 
 

 Very happy with everything on the day 

 The grounds, etc, are always looking very nice. Buildings, etc, are clean, well 
presented 

 No, during a stressful, sad time, everything ran smoothly and perfectly 

 Too long a wait from date of death (Note: BSM&R confirmed funeral times available 
much sooner but FD chose not to utilise them) 

 Thank you for making a difficult experience straightforward 

 No all good 

 Many thanks, my best wishes to everyone 

 I didn’t have any dealings with the staff directly, however, the venue and surroundings 
are beautiful 

 A number of people were unable to hear the minister making me wonder if there was a 
problem with your sound system (Note: Funeral 29/01/20, deceased 101 yrs old) 

 Wonderful crematorium, first class, keep up the excellent work 

 Everyone does a good job – thanks. The wait until 13/01/20 was too long (Note: Dod 
23/12/19) 

 Coychurch Crematorium is a very tranquil place. It is extremely well kept (all around) 
 
 
 
 
 

Expenditure for Planned Works 2019/20 
 

The programme of Business Plan expenditure for 2019/20 is indicated below: 

 

 

Narrative 

2019/20 

Proposed Revised 

 £000 £000 

   
Organ Upgrade/Repairs 
                                 

96 
 

101 
 

Crematory Restroom refurbishment 
 

30 18 

Flat roof repairs   Waiting Room &  Porte-cochère  30 33 
 
Flower Court Extension: Design consultants fees 
& Construction  (moved to 2020/21) 
 
External Lighting to Site  (moved to 2020/21) 
 
Electrical Distribution Boards  (moved to 2020/21) 
 

 
300 

 
 

300 
 

20 

 
55 
 
 
0 
 
0 

Page 17



Business Plan Service Objectives 
 

A progress report on the service objectives and planned actions is summarised on the following Business Plan Assessment and Review.  

 

2019/20 BUSINESS PLAN ASSESSMENT & REVIEW 

SERVICE OBJECTIVES PLANNED ACTIONS TARGET/DESIRED 

OUTCOME 

RESP 

OFFICER 

METHOD OF 

MEASUREMENT 

PROGRESS REPORT 

 

Organ Maintenance 

 

 Organ upgrade/repairs 

 

 

April 2020 
Joanna 

Hamilton 

 

Regular  

progress meetings 

 

 Completed Jan 2020. 
 

 

Crematory Restroom 

 

 Refurbishment 

 

 

April 2020 
Joanna 

Hamilton 

Regular  

progress meetings 
 Completed December 2019. 

 

Flat roof repairs 

 

 Replace Waiting Room & 

porte-cochère surface 

 

 

June 2019 Joanna 

Hamilton 

 

Regular progress 

meetings 

 

 Completed June 2019. 

 

Flower Court Extension 

 

 Construction 

 

 

Dec 2020 
Joanna 

Hamilton 

 

Report to JC. 

Regular progress 

meetings 

 

 Reported to meeting 6th 
March 2020, for completion 
April 2021. 

 

 

External Lighting to Site 

 

 Install Lighting 

 

 

Dec 2020 
Joanna 

Hamilton 

Report to JC. 

Regular progress 

meetings. 

 

 Reported to meeting 6th 
March 2020, for completion 
Dec 2020. 
 

 

Electrical Distribution 

Boards 

 

 Replace 

 

 

April 2020 
Joanna 

Hamilton 

 

Regular progress 

meetings. 

 

 Reported to meeting 6th 
March 2020, for completion 
Dec 2020. 

 

 

Budget Strategy 

 

 Annually review & revise 

service charges 

 

 Review works programme 

 

 CAMEO payments 

 

 

Annually 

 

 

Annually 

 

Annually 

(Commenced Jan. 2014) 

Joanna 
Hamilton 

 

Annual report to Joint 

Committee 

 

Annual report to Joint 

Committee 

 

Annual report to Joint 

Committee 

 

 Completed, reported to 
meeting on 6th March 2020. 

 

 Completed, reported to 
meeting on 6th March 2020. 

 

 Completed, reported to 
meeting on 6th March 2020. 

P
age 18



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

4 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER

FLOWER COURT FACILITIES

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Committee on the 
provision of an extension to the Flower Court facility at Coychurch 
Crematorium.

2. Connection to Corporate Well-being Objectives/Other Corporate 
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-
being objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015:-

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, 
work, study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused 
on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people in 
the county borough.

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and 
resilient –taking steps to reduce or prevent people from 
becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services. Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, 
healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources 
(financial, physical, ecological, human and technological) are 
used as effectively and efficiently as possible and support the 
creation of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 The buildings of the Crematorium are carefully designed to provide for 
the ceremonial and sacred aspects of the cremation service and to 
complement the landscape in which they sit. The Crematorium is an 
important work by a British architect of international reputation (Maxwell 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Fry) and is Grade 2* listed. As such, any proposed changes to the 
scheme must be carefully considered.

3.2 The Crematorium is regularly complemented by service users for the 
high standard of facilities provided and this is evident on the returned 
service questionnaires.  The Flower Court facility, however, is an area 
that lends itself to improvement due to its compact layout. It is proving 
inadequate for the functions it is required to accommodate.

3.3 At the meeting on 15th June 2018 the Joint Committee approved, in 
principle, the provision of an extension to the Flower Court facility by 
extending the rear of the Crematorium building onto the current grassed 
area outside the exit doors of Crallo Chapel, in order to address the 
bottleneck that is created when large congregations file through one set 
of doors and into the limited space of the Flower Court. Additionally, the 
delay that can be caused to the following funeral service as a result of 
the slow movement of the congregation through this area. The Joint 
Committee authorised the submission of a feasibility report to be 
presented to the Joint Committee at its meeting in June 2019.

3.4 Architect Mr Jonathan Adams (Capita) was placed in charge of the 
design works. Mr Adams is a Welsh architect particularly known for his 
landmark buildings in Cardiff and was previously President of the Royal 
Society of Architects in Wales (RSAW) from 2005 to 2007. His notable 
projects include the prestigious Millennium Centre in Cardiff Bay, the 
new headquarters building for the Welsh Joint Education Committee 
(WJEC) in Llandaff  and the Sherman Theatre refurbishment in Cardiff.

3.5 At the meeting on 14th June 2019, the Joint Committee approved the 
proposed design of the extension to the Flower Court facility and 
authorised the application for planning permission and invitation 
of tenders in respect of the works to be undertaken, subject to further 
approval. The provision of further funding for the project would be 
accommodated in the Crematorium’s accumulated reserve funds and 
an estimated amount of £540,000 was included in the 2019/20 budget 
to accommodate the funding of  the construction phase of the project 
and consultants fees, subject to further approval by the Joint 
Committee.

3.6 The programme would involve:

 Preparation of detailed drawings.
 Planning submission/listed building consent.
 Tender and report back to the Joint Committee for approval.
 Construction of extension with a view to commencing works within 

the 2019/20 financial year.

3.7 At the meeting on 6th March 2020 the Joint Committee approved the 
Service Level Business Plan for 2020/21, moving £520,000 of the 
estimated amount for the project that was included in the 2019/20 
budget to the 2020/21 budget.   

Page 20



4. Current Situation / Proposal 

4.1 Work on the project is progressing well on two fronts:

1) Statutory Approvals:  A full listed building planning application 
along with a detailed Heritage Impact Statement was submitted 
in February 2020. Planning Approval, Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Approval and Building Regulations Approval was 
provided by BCBC in July 2020. Listed Building Consent is 
awaited from Welsh Government.

2) Detailed Design: Architect, Jonathan Adams, is currently 
concentrating on the special structural elements, in order to 
minimise construction risk and to provide the highest possible 
level of cost certainty before commencement of the contract.

3) Health and Safety/CDMA Requirements: Pre-construction 
health and safety / design risk information has been reviewed - 
Capita has agreed the format of the Health and Safety File with 
the Client and included these in the pre-construction information 
pack. Capita has assessed the relevant skills, knowledge and 
experience levels of the Design Team.

4.2 Capita and architect Jonathan Adams have made good progress with 
procuring the roof structure within the target budget price and are 
actively progressing the procurement phase.  In the meeting of 6th 
March 2020 the Joint Committee was advised that it was anticipated 
that a further report would be presented to the Joint Committee in June 
2020 to seek final approval of tenders for the construction phase of the 
project. The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted upon this timetable and 
it is anticipated that this report will be presented to the Joint Committee 
in March 2021.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 None.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report.

7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The wellbeing goals identified in the Act were considered in the 
preparation of this report. It is considered that there will be no 
significant or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing 
goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 The estimated budget cost of £520,000 for the design/project 
management works and construction was included in the 

Page 21



Crematorium’s Business Plan for 2020/21 and accommodated in the 
2020/21 revenue budget.

9. Recommendation(s):

9.1 The Joint Committee is recommended to note the report.

ZAK SHELL
CLERK AND TECHNICAL OFFICER
17th August 2020

Contact Officer:
Joanna Hamilton, Bereavement Services Manager & Registrar, 
Bereavement Services, Coychurch Crematorium, Coychurch, Bridgend, CF35 6AB.
Telephone No. 01656 656605
E-mail: joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk
Background Papers: 

Flower Court Facilities Report to the Joint Committee 15th June 2018; and 
Business Plan Report to the Joint Committee 8th March 2019; and
Flower Court Facilities Report to the Joint Committee 14th June 2019; and
Business Plan Report to the Joint Committee 6th March 2020.

Page 22

mailto:joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER

COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

4 SEPTEMBER 2020

GREEN FLAG AWARD

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Joint Committee on 
Coychurch Crematorium’s successful application for a Green Flag 
Award in 2020.

2. Connection to Corporate Well-being Objectives/Other Corporate 
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-
being objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015:-

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, 
work, study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused 
on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people in 
the county borough.

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and 
resilient –taking steps to reduce or prevent people from 
becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services. Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, 
healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources 
(financial, physical, ecological, human and technological) are 
used as effectively and efficiently as possible and support the 
creation of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 The Green Flag Award is the benchmark national standard for parks 
and green spaces in England and Wales. It was launched in 1996 to 
recognise and reward the best green spaces in the country. The first 
national award was introduced in 1997 and it continues to identify the 
high standards against which our parks and green spaces are 
measured. It is also seen as a way of encouraging organisations to 
achieve high environmental standards, setting a benchmark of 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



excellence in recreational green areas. All green spaces are different 
and diversity is encouraged with each site being judged on its merits.

3.2 Coychurch Crematorium received its first award in 2010 and annually 
thereafter. A re-submission for the Green Flag Award was made in 
January 2020 and awards were announced on 14th July 2020.

4. Current Situation/Proposal

4.1 The Crematorium has once again been successful in securing this 
nationally recognised award for the standards of care and maintenance 
of the site and grounds. The award confirms the commitment to 
maintaining high standards, which can be appreciated by all visitors.

4.2 Coychurch is flying its Green Flag for the eleventh year in succession. 

4.3 The Chairperson of the Coychurch Crematorium Joint Committee and 
the Bereavement Services Manager and Registrar normally collect the 
Green Flag Award at a ceremony held in July but the Green Flag 
Award organisers did not hold an award ceremony this year. Instead 
the Green Flag and certificate have been delivered directly to 
Coychurch Crematorium.

4.4 Bridgend County Borough Council would normally issue a press 
release to advise the public of the Green Flag Award successes, but 
due to the current Covid-19 Pandemic, Keep Wales Tidy, the Green 
Flag organiser, has requested that no promotion/press/social media 
should be done at this time and has instead advised that there are 
plans to mark the event on 14th October, subject to further update. 

4.5 The award requires an annual application and a further submission will 
be made in January 2021.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 None.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report.

7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The report advises the Committee on the success of the Crematorium 
in securing the Green Flag Award for 2020. There is no requirement for 
a well-being statement.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 The submission for the award costs £350 and is met from the revenue 
budget.

Page 24



9. Recommendation(s):

9.1 The Joint Committee is recommended to note the success of the 
Crematorium in securing the Green Flag Award for 2020.

ZAK SHELL
CLERK AND TECHNICAL OFFICER
17th August 2020

Contact Officer:
Joanna Hamilton, Bereavement Services Manager & Registrar, 
Bereavement Services, Coychurch Crematorium, Coychurch, Bridgend, CF35 6AB.
Telephone No. 01656 656605
E-mail: joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk
Background Papers: None  

PART A - SCREENING FOR EQUALITY IMPACT

Name of policy
GREEN FLAG AWARD

Name of lead officer ZAK SHELL

Directorate/Department CLERK AND TECHNICAL OFFICER 
TO COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

What is the main purpose of this policy? (give a brief description)

The purpose of this report is to advise the Joint Committee on Coychurch 
Crematorium’s successful application for a Green Flag Award in 2020.

What are the main activities covered by this policy? (give a summary)

Page 25

mailto:joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk


Note the success of the Crematorium in securing the Green Flag Award for 2020.

Who will be directly affected by the delivery of this policy and who is supposed to benefit from it? (e.g. 
staff, general public, target community, specific equality group)
General Public

Indicate the likely impact of the policy on the public, employees and community 
relations. (please tick below as applicable) Yes No

Is this policy likely to impact on the way services are delivered to the general public? X

Is this policy likely to impact on the way employees are treated in the workplace? X

Are people protected by the equality duties likely to have different access needs in 
relation to this policy? X

Is this policy likely to impact on relations between different communities or groups of 
people protected by the equality duties? X

Is this policy delivered along with other public sector partner organisations or 
contractors? X

Indicate the potential impact on specific equality groups

Is this policy likely to have a differential impact on the following groups of people protected by the 
equality duties? (please tick below as applicable)

Women? NO Men? NO

Disabled people? NO Different age groups? NO

Different racial groups? NO Different religion or belief? NO

Lesbian, gay, bi
sexual or transsexual people?

NO Transgender people? NO

Indicate the relevance to specific public duties

Is this policy relevant to any of the following duties? (please tick below as applicable) Yes No

Promote equality of opportunity? X

Eliminate unlawful discrimination? X

Foster good relations between people from different backgrounds? X

Eliminate harassment or victimisation? X

Promote positive attitudes towards disabled people? X

Encourage participation of disabled people in public life? X

Page 26



Consider treating disabled people more favourably than others?  X

Protect and promote human rights? X

Ensure the equal treatment of English and Welsh languages? X

Use the space below to briefly set out what evidence has been considered as part of the 
screening.

Likely differential impact on specific equality groups (positive or negative): 
Improved service for all

Likely relevance to the following equality duties: 
Not applicable

Likely relevance to the following human rights: 
Not applicable

Equal treatment of English and Welsh languages:
Not applicable

Indicate what impact the policy will have on equality groups and its relevance to duties: (please 
tick below as applicable)

High Highly likely to have an impact on groups and highly relevant to duties 

Medium Likely to have an impact on most groups and relevant to most duties

Low Likely to impact on some groups and relevant to some duties 

None Unlikely to have an impact and not relevant to the duties X

SIGN OFF ON SCREENING FOR EQUALITY IMPACT

Name and job title of lead 
officer:

JOANNA HAMILTON  –
BEREAVEMENT SERVICES  MANAGER & REGISTRAR

Directorate/Department: COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Date: 21st  AUGUST 2020

Page 27



Checked by: ZAK SHELL 

Directorate/Department: COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Date:
21st  AUGUST 2020

Name and job title of Head of 
Service or Corporate 
Director:

ZAK SHELL

Directorate/Department: CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER 
TO COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

Date:
21st  AUGUST 2020

Page 28



PART B - ASSESSING FOR EQUALITY IMPACT 

1.  Involvement of customers, employees and partner organisations

Briefly describe what consultation / involvement has been carried out that is relevant to the 
equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

Briefly describe what consultation / involvement will be undertaken that is relevant to the 
equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

2.  Data collection and monitoring for equality

Briefly describe what data and information has been collected that is relevant to the equality 
groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

Briefly describe what data and information will be collected and how it will be used that is 
relevant to the equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

3.  Delivery to customers – Access issues

Briefly describe what action has been taken to meet customer access issues that is relevant to 
the equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

Briefly describe what action will be taken to meet customer access issues that is relevant to the 
equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

4.   Employment issues 

Briefly describe what action has been taken to meet employer access issues that is relevant to 
the equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

Briefly describe what action will be taken to meet employer access issues that is relevant to the 
equality groups and the duties:
NOT RELEVANT

5.  Delivery – Partnerships and contractors

Briefly describe what evidence there is that equality and human rights are considered in 
partnership working and contracts (i.e. tendering documents, contract clauses, performance 
measurements).
NOT RELEVANT

6.  Harassment, community relations and human rights

If relevant to the policy, briefly describe what evidence there is about harassment, relations 
between different equality groups and human rights. 
NOT RELEVANT

Page 29



8

Part C – Summary of assessment, action planning and monitoring progress
Use the table below to analyse the findings from Part A and Part B and set out what options will help the Council to mitigate any risk of unlawful discrimination, promote 
equality, good community relations, Welsh language and human rights.  This may include actions on involvement and consultation; data collection and further research; 
physical access to information or services; training or procurement.  These actions should be included in the relevant policy and inform relevant strategic or service 
plans.  Set out arrangements for reviewing the actions to measure whether the intended outcome has been achieved.  The summary should be included in any formal 
corporate reports on the policy and retained by the service area for the statutory period of six years.

Name of policy : GREEN FLAG AWARD Date : 
21st  AUGUST 2020

Summary of assessment: (expand as required)
NO IMPACT ON SPECIFIC EQUALITY GROUPS OR DISABILITY DUTIES

Action to be undertaken (expand as required) Lead officer Target date Expected equality outcome

NONE REQUIRED

P
age 30



9

SIGN OFF ON EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Name and job title of lead 
officer:

JOANNA HAMILTON  – 
BEREAVEMENT SERVICES MANAGER & REGISTRAR

Directorate/Department: COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Date:
21st  AUGUST 2020

Checked by: ZAK SHELL

Directorate/Department: COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Date:
21st  AUGUST 2020

Name and job title of Head of 
Service or Corporate 
Director:

ZAK SHELL 

Directorate/Department: CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER 
TO COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

Date:
21st  AUGUST 2020

Retain a copy in your service area.

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER

COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

4 SEPTEMBER 2020

CHRISTMAS SERVICE

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to advise the Joint Committee on 
arrangements for the Christmas Service 2020.

2. Connection to Corporate Well-being Objectives/Other Corporate 
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-
being objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015:-

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, 
work, study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused 
on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people in 
the county borough.

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and 
resilient –taking steps to reduce or prevent people from 
becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services. Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, 
healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources 
(financial, physical, ecological, human and technological) are 
used as effectively and efficiently as possible and support the 
creation of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 Coychurch Crematorium holds an annual Christmas Service for visitors 
and bereaved.

4. Proposal

4.1 Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic it is considered necessary to 
cancel this year’s Christmas Service. The service will resume in 
December 2021.

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 None.

6. Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.1 Bridgend Council’s Equalities Impact Toolkit has been utilised, which 
indicates that the nomination proposed will have no impact on specific
equality groups and disability duties.

7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The report advises the Committee on the arrangements for the 
Christmas Service 2020. There is no requirement for a well-being 
statement.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 None.

9. Recommendation(s)

9.1 The Joint Committee is recommended to approve the cancellation of 
the Christmas Service 2020.

Zak Shell
CLERK AND TECHNICAL OFFICER
17th August 2020

Contact Officer:
Joanna Hamilton, Bereavement Services Manager & Registrar, 
Bereavement Services, Coychurch Crematorium, Coychurch, Bridgend, CF35 6AB.
Telephone No. 01656 656605
E-mail: joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk
Background Papers: Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit  

Page 34

mailto:joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

4 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE CLERK & TECHNICAL OFFICER

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Committee on the 
arrangements at Coychurch Crematorium during the first wave of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.

2. Connection to Corporate Well-being Objectives/Other Corporate 
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-
being objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015:-

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, 
work, study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused 
on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people in 
the county borough.

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and 
resilient –taking steps to reduce or prevent people from 
becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services. Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, 
healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources 
(financial, physical, ecological, human and technological) are 
used as effectively and efficiently as possible and support the 
creation of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 In March 2020, “The Health Protection (Coronavirus Restrictions) 
(Wales) Regulations 2020”, imposed restrictions for crematoria. This 
included allowing them to hold funeral services only if social distancing 
measures were introduced, ensuring a distance of 2 metres between all 
individuals on the premises (unless they were from the same 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



household).  The regulations allowed only immediate family and close 
friends to attend the funeral service as long as it did not involve 
extensive travel and that those attending were:

 The person organising the funeral;
 Invited by the person organising the funeral;
 The carer of a person invited to attend the funeral.

The numbers attending were to be restricted in accordance with local 
amenities and risk assessments.

3.2. Initially the regulations stated that the Crematorium grounds should 
remain shut to the public with only those officially attending funerals 
allowed access to the site. This resulted in the Crematorium grounds 
being closed for a short period which included the two-week Palm 
Sunday and Easter period. The regulations were quickly amended by 
Welsh Government allowing the Crematorium grounds to re-open for 
those invited to attend a funeral and to enable members of the public to 
lay flowers at a graveside.

3.3 Welsh Government pandemic regulations were observed and 
appropriate signage was erected around the Crematorium site to advise 
mourners of the restrictions in place and the need for social distancing. 
The larger chapel, Crallo, was the only chapel utilised and the chapel 
layout was adjusted to promote social distancing. The one way 
directional passage of mourners throughout the building was strictly 
enforced.  Sanitisation and ventilation were carried out in between 
services. Procedures were adapted in order to protect the safety of 
chapel staff and appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) was 
utilised. The Chapel of Remembrance remained open in order for 
members of the public to access the Book of Remembrance and the 
toilet facilities in the Waiting Room, Flower Court and at Coity chapel 
remained open to ensure that mourners and visitors to the grounds had 
access to hand washing facilities as they passed through the site. 
These were subject to an intense daily cleaning and sanitisation 
regime. 

3.4 All staff worked at the facility throughout the pandemic with relevant 
PPE and social distancing measures in place. Risk assessments were 
carried out and regularly reviewed, and procedures adapted to enable 
the service to continue its normal duties.

3.5 The administration office remained fully operational but was closed to 
the visiting public with all assistance provided over the telephone and 
via e-mail/postal correspondence. Funeral Directors were provided with 
access to the office via an intercom service in order to deliver forms and 
deliver/collect urns and were additionally allowed to deliver forms 
electronically. They were provided entry to the office via the use of 
screens and additionally hand sanitizer was provided. The Medical 
Referee was accommodated for a daily visit and a private room made 
available with hand sanitizer provided. Staff socially distanced within 
the offices and work stations were adapted accordingly. Intensive daily 

Page 36



cleaning measures were adopted. All elements of the service continued 
to function.

3.6 Interments and scatters of cremated remains continued within the 
Crematorium’s grounds with family present, utilising social distancing 
measures.

3.7 Extra measures were implemented to ensure the Crematorium did not 
become overwhelmed during the pandemic.  Funeral service times 
were restricted to thirty minutes and additional service times were 
introduced to increase the daily capacity from a maximum of ten 
funerals to fourteen, to ensure that the bereaved did not have a long 
wait for a service to take place. Two additional staff members were 
redeployed into the service to enable additional cremator technicians to 
be trained to ensure resilience and business continuity. Shift patterns 
were operated into the nights. 

3.8 During the peak of the pandemic funeral attendance numbers were 
restricted to ten and then relaxed to twenty when it became safer to do 
so, to try to protect staff and mourners from infection. Risk 
assessments were carried out and regularly reviewed and social 
distancing maintained. Mourners continued to be provided with the 
option to stream the funeral service over the internet and to record the 
service. Mourners were reminded of the option to hold a memorial 
service at a later date. While the Crematorium was placed under 
pressure during the Covid-19 pandemic it was never close to being 
overwhelmed.

3.9 Regular mass fatality meetings took place between the Bereavement 
Services Manager and Registrar and BCBC’s Emergency Management 
Team to maintain communication with Welsh Government and Local 
Health Boards and additionally to ensure that local Funerals Directors 
were provided with the required PPE/body bags and that the 
procurement of temporary mortuary facilities was secured.

3.10 The Bereavement Services Manager and Registrar held regular 
briefings and communications with Funeral Directors to ensure that 
Welsh Government pandemic regulations were observed and that all 
Crematorium procedures and strategies were fully understood as the 
pandemic progressed.

4. Current Situation / Proposal 

4.1 The following table provides a comparison of the number of funeral 
services during 2019 and 2020:

Jan Feb March April May June Total
2019 171 151 139 143 130 133 867
2020 171 172 163 207 165 137 1015
Difference 0 21 24 64 35 4 148

Page 37



4.2 The Bereavement Services Manager and Registrar is analysing the 
processes and procedures adopted during the first wave of the Covid-
19 pandemic and reviewing the Pandemic Plan.

4.3 Coychurch Crematorium continues to operate under pandemic 
regulations.  In order to adhere to Welsh Government legislation and 
that of Public Health Wales regarding social distancing, local measures 
remain in place restricting funeral attendance, selected by prior 
invitation.

4.4 Funeral Directors continue to receive updates as required.

4.5 The health and wellbeing of bereaved families, funeral directing teams, 
Council staff and their families, and the wider community, continues to 
be the Crematorium’s highest priority and Welsh Government guidance 
is being monitored accordingly. 

4.6 The numbers attending funerals is under constant review in accordance 
with Welsh Government guidance. The Crematorium service remains 
appreciative of how difficult this pandemic period is for bereaved 
families and their friends as it continues to manage the service safely.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 None.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report.

7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The wellbeing goals identified in the Act were considered in the 
preparation of this report. It is considered that there will be no 
significant or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing 
goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 Additional expenditure for PPE, cleaning equipment and staff training is 
met from the revenue budget and detailed in the attached Treasurer’s 
Report. 

9. Recommendation(s):

9.1 The Joint Committee is recommended to note the report.

Page 38



ZAK SHELL
CLERK AND TECHNICAL OFFICER
17th August 2020

Contact Officer:
Joanna Hamilton, Bereavement Services Manager & Registrar, 
Bereavement Services, Coychurch Crematorium, Coychurch, Bridgend, CF35 6AB.
Telephone No. 01656 656605
E-mail: joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 39

mailto:joanna.hamilton@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE

4 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE TREASURER

ANNUAL ACCOUNTING STATEMENT 2019-20 AND REVENUE MONITORING 
STATEMENT 1 APRIL TO 30 JUNE 20

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:-

 present the audited Annual Accounting Statement for the 2019-20 financial 
year to the Joint Committee, following closure of the accounts.

 to inform the Joint Committee of details of income and expenditure for the 
first quarter of the 2020-21 financial year, and provide a projection of the final 
outturn position.

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 There are no connections to the corporate well-being objectives in this report.

3. Background

3.1 Under Regulation 14 of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014, Coychurch 
Crematorium Joint Committee is required to complete an Annual Accounting 
Statement as they are classed as a smaller local government body with annual 
income and expenditure below £2.5 million. 

3.2 The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 require that the Joint Committee 
must formally approve the Annual Accounting Statement by 15 June and certify that 
they present fairly the financial position of Coychurch Crematorium. Due to the Covid-
19 pandemic, the Joint Committee were unable to approve the statement by this date. 
It has been agreed with Audit Wales to accept the Annual Accounting Statement 
being certified at the meeting on the 4th September.

3.3 Due to Covid-19 the auditor has already undertaken their audit and as a result has 
identified that no amendments are required, as outlined in their Audit letter in 
Appendix 1. The certified Annual Accounting Statement must be published by no 
later than 15 September 2020.

3.4 Revenue Estimates for 2020-21 were approved by the Joint Committee at its meeting 
on 6 March 2020 and the projected position as at 30 June 2020 is shown in paragraph 
4.5.

4. Current situation/proposal

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



4.1 Section 1 of the Annual Accounting Statement (Appendix 2) shows that in 2019-20 
Coychurch Crematorium made a net surplus of £298,201 (difference between Line 
1 ‘Balances brought forward’ and Line 7 ‘Balances carried forward’). The surplus 
has been added to the accumulated reserve for the Crematorium brought forward at 
31 March 2019, bringing the total of that reserve to £2,053,652 at 31 March 2020 
compared to £1,755,451 in the preceding year.

The following table shows a summary of the final financial position for the 
Crematorium for 2019-20 as compared to the budget set at the start of the financial 
year.

Table 1 – Crematorium Financial Position 2019-20

Actual 
2018-19

Budget 
2019-20

Actual 
2019-20

Variance 
2019-20

£'000  £'000 £'000 £'000
 Expenditure    

310 Employees 329 315           (14)
248 Premises 248 249                       1
158 Supplies, Services & Transport 178 155                     (23)           

94 Agency/Contractors 102 99                        (3)
35 Administration 36 32             (4)

4 Capital Financing Costs 776 207         (569)      
849 Gross Expenditure 1,669 1,057         (612)    

  
 Income   

(1,299)
(18)

Crematorium Fees etc.
Welsh Government Grant

(1,303) 
0

(1,312)
(13)

        (9)
(13)

(29) BCBC Contribution (30) (30)              0
 (1,346)  Gross Income (1,333) (1,355)         (22)         

(497) (Surplus)/Deficit       336         (298)         (634)
(497) Transfer (to)/from Reserve       336         (298)

4.2 Explanations for the more significant variances from budget are given below: 

 The underspend of £14,000 on Employees is made up of a part year vacancy of the 
Groundsperson/Relief Crematorium Technician post, and full year vacancy of the 
Weekend Attendant post .

 
 The underspend of £23,000 on Supplies, Services & Transport is made up of  

underspends on Items for Resale (£8,300), Equipment Repairs (£7,800), 
Uniforms/Protective Clothing (£3,000), Printing (£1,900) and Security Services 
(£2,000).

 Table 2 below shows a breakdown of the Planned Maintenance Budget along with 
the Outturn and Variances for 2019-20.

Page 42



Table 2 – Planned Capital Maintenance 2019-20

 The underspend on the Flower Court Extension is due to only surveys and 
consultancy work being paid for in 2019-20. The balance of £245,000 on the flower 
court extension, £300,000 for Site Lighting and £20,000 for Electricity Distribution 
Boards have all been carried forward and form part of the 2020-21 Planned Capital 
Maintenance budget.

 Income is higher than budgeted by £22,000 due to the Child Burial Fees Grant 
(£13,000) and Cremation Fees (£9,000).

4.3    In addition to the Annual Accounting Statement, a supplementary Balance Sheet is 
provided in Table 3 below. This supplementary information provides a further 
breakdown of the figures recorded in the Annual Accounting Statement. This is for 
information only, and is not subject to audit at year end.

2019-20 Budget 
£’000

Outturn 
£’000 

Variance 
£’000 

Organ upgrade 96 101 5
Flower Court Extension 300 55 (245)
Site Lighting 300 0 (300)
Flat Roof Repairs - Waiting Room 30 33 3
Mess Room Refurbishment 30 18 (12)
Electricity Distribution Boards 20 0 (20)

Total 776 207 (569)

Page 43



Table 3 – Balance Sheet for Years Ended 31 March 2019 & 2020

31 March 
2019 Description

31 March 
2020

£’000  £’000
   
 Property, Plant & Equipment  

3,302  - Other Land and Buildings 3,611
912  - Community Assets 1,100

4,214 Non-Current Assets 4,711
 

29 Inventories 29
150 Short Term Debtors 153

1,595 Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,882
1,774 Current Assets 2,064

  
 Short Term Borrowing

(16) Short Term Creditors (7)
(16) Current Liabilities (7)

5,972 Net Assets 6,768
  

 1,755
Usable reserves
 -  Accumulated Surplus 2,054

 
Unusable reserves

1,613  - Revaluation Reserve 1,820
2,601  - Capital Adjustment Account 2,892

3
 - Short-term Accumulating    
 - Compensated Absences Account 2
 

5,972 Total Reserves 6,768

4.4 Further information to explain the balances is provided below:

 Property, Plant and Equipment of £4.711 million as recorded on Line 12 of the Annual 
Accounting Statement represent buildings, land and fixtures and fittings. The 
increase in the value of Non-Current assets is due to the net effect of the 
revaluation/enhancement of assets less depreciation charges. 

 Inventories of £29,000 relates to stock included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value and relate to memorials purchased for future use in the 
Garden of Remembrance.

 Short term debtors of £153,000 represent the monies owed to the Coychurch 
Crematorium Joint Committee by trade debtors such as Funeral Directors.

Page 44



 Cash and cash equivalents of £1.882 million represents cash held by Bridgend 
County Borough Council, the financial services provider, as part of its general bank 
account. No separate bank account exists for Coychurch Crematorium. 

 Short term creditors of £7,000 represent monies owed by the Coychurch 
Crematorium Joint Committee for goods/services received in 2019-20 and includes a 
balance for annual leave not yet taken by staff.

 Reserves are reported in two categories. Usable reserves can be used by the 
Committee to provide services subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of 
reserves. The second category, Unusable Reserves, are not available to provide 
services. This includes a reserve that holds the timing differences between the annual 
leave entitlement for staff and actual annual leave taken at 31 March 2020 and 
revaluation of assets and capital adjustments.

 The accumulated surplus of £2.054 million as recorded in Line 11 of the Annual 
Accounting Statement reflects the surplus for the current year and the balance of any 
previous year’s surpluses/deficits held to fund any future capital works. The 
accumulated surplus will be the subject of a future report considering its use for 
proposed improvements and the possible repayment to the Partner Authorities.   

 The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and 
for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under 
statutory provisions.

 The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise 
arise on the Accumulated Surplus Fund Balance from accruing for compensated 
absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried 
forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the 
Accumulated Surplus Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. The 
Account balance was £2,300 as at 31 March 2020 (£3,083 - 31 March 2019).

4.5 Table 4 below shows detail of income and expenditure for April to June 2020 
together with the projected outturn for the financial year of an underspend of 
£23,000. 

Page 45



Table 4 – Crematorium Financial Position 2020-21

Actual 
Spend 

2019-20  
Budget
2020-21

* Adjusted 
Actual 

01/04/2020  
to 

30/06/2020

Projected 
Outturn 
2020-21

Projected 
Over/ 

(Under) 
Spend

£'000  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure 

315 Employees 324 82 349 25
249 Premises 314 65 311 (3)

155 Supplies, Services & 
Transport 144 33 146 2

99 Agency / Contractors 104 21 104 0
32 Administration 36 9 36 0

207 Capital Financing 882 5 882 0
1,057 Gross Expenditure 1,804 215 1,828 24

Income

(1,312) Fees And Charges (1,380) (255) (1,385) (5)
(13) Welsh Government Grant 0 (0) (42) (42)
(30) BCBC Contribution    (29) (29) (29) 0

(1,355) Gross Income (1,409) (284) (1,456) (47)
(298) (Surplus)/Deficit 395 (69) 372 (23)

(298)
Transfer (to)/from 
Reserve 395 (69) 372

*Adjusted to include pro-rata commitments during the year

An explanation of the variances between the Budget and Projected Outturn is detailed 
below:

 The overspend of £25,000 on Employees is due to two Temporary Crematorium 
Technician’s being employed in June 20, offset by an underspend of £17,000 on 
other salary costs. The two temporary posts will be funded from the Welsh 
Government Covid 19 Hardship Fund and the corresponding income is shown in 
the table under Welsh Government Grant.

 The underspend of £3,000 on premises is due to a saving against budget on Non 
Domestic Rates.

 The overspend of £2,000 on Supplies, Services and Transport is due to an 
overspend on cleaning materials.

Page 46



 The additional income is made up of £42,000 from the Welsh Government Covid 19 
Hardship Fund in respect of the two temporary technicians and £5,000 additional 
cremation fees.

4.6 The Capital Financing budget of £882,000 is broken down in the table below. 

Table 5 – Capital Works Budget 2020-21

2019-20

Budget
2019-20

£ 000

Spend to 
30 June

£ 000

Projected 
Outturn 
2019-20 
  £ 000

Flower Court Extension 520 0 520
Site Lighting 300 1 300
Chapel Sound System 42 4 42
Electricity Distribution Boards 20 0 20
Total 882 5 882

These costs will be met from the Capital Financing Costs budget identified in Table 
4 above, which includes the underspends identified in 4.2.

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There is no impact on the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act have been considered in the preparation of 
this report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial implications

8.1 These are reflected within the report

9. Recommendation(s)

9.1 The Joint Committee is recommended to 

(a) Approve the Annual Accounting Statement for Coychurch Crematorium for 
2019-20 (Appendix 2), and request that the Chair of the Joint Committee signs 
the Annual Accounting Statement. 

(b) Note the projected financial performance of Coychurch Crematorium for      
2020-21.

Page 47



GILL LEWIS
INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER - FINANCE, PERFORMANCE & CHANGE
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
TREASURER TO THE COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE
4 SEPTEMBER 2020

Contact officer: Eilish Thomas
Finance Manager, Financial Control and Closing BCBC

Telephone: (01656) 643359

Email: Eilish.Thomas@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Bridgend County Borough Council
Wing 4
Ravenscourt
CF31 4AP

Background documents: Report of the Treasurer
Revenue Estimates 2020-21
Coychurch Crematorium Joint Committee
6 March 2020

Page 48



 
 

Page 1 of 2 - Coychurch Crematorium Committee Annual Return for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 - please contact us in Welsh or English / cysylltwch â ni’n 
Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. 

 
 

Reference: 2005A2020-21 
Date issued: 25 August 2020 

 
 
Dear Committee Members 

Coychurch Crematorium Committee Annual Return for the year ended 
31 March 2020 
The auditor is responsible for providing an opinion: 
• on whether the information contained in the Committee’s Annual Return for 

the year ended 31 March 2020 is in accordance with the Auditor General for 
Wales’s requirements; and 

• if any matters have come to the Auditor General for Wales’s attention giving 
cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have 
not been met. 

We received the draft Annual Return for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 
in line with the agreed deadline. We have completed our audit work and we are 
reporting to you the issues arising from our work. 

Audit certificate and opinion 
It is our intention to issue an unqualified certificate and report for the year ended 
31 March 2020 and there are no matters in respect of the opinion which we wish 
to draw to your attention.  

Qualification issues 
There are no qualification issues to report.  

Misstatements in the Statement of Accounts 
There are no misstatements to report. 
  

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 
Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Page 49

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Page 2 of 2 - Coychurch Crematorium Committee Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2020 - Please 
contact us in Welsh or English / Cysylltwch â ni’n Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. 

Other matters not affecting our opinion 
There are no other matters to report. 

Yours sincerely 

 
Mark Jones on behalf of Derwyn Owen 
Engagement Director 

Page 50



 

1 

Smaller relevant local government bodies in Wales  

Annual Return for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 

THE ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT PROCESS 

Section 12 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires local government bodies in Wales to make up their accounts 

each year to 31 March and to have those accounts audited by the Auditor General for Wales. Regulation 14 of the 

Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 states that smaller local government bodies i.e. those with annual 

income and expenditure below £2.5 million must prepare their accounts in accordance with proper practices.  

For minor joint committees with income and expenditure below £2.5 million, proper practices are set out in the One 

Voice Wales/Society of Local Council Clerks publication ‘Governance and accountability for local councils in Wales – 

A Practitioners’ Guide’ (the Practitioners’ Guide). The Practitioners’ Guide requires that they prepare their accounts in 

the form of an annual return. This annual return meets the requirements of the Practitioners’ Guide. 

The accounts and audit arrangements follow the process as set out below. 

RFO/Clerk prepares 

accounting 

statements and 

Annual Governance 

Statement. Internal 

audit completes 

internal audit report. 

RFO certifies return 

(below Part 2 of the 

Annual Governance 

Statement) before 

15 June and 

presents the return 

to the body. 

 The body approves the 

Annual Return by 15 June. 

This is evidenced by the 

Chair signing the box 

below Part 2 of the Annual 

Governance Statement.  

RFO/Clerk sends the 

Annual Return and copies 

of requested evidence to 

the external auditor acting 

on behalf of the Auditor 

General for Wales. 

 External auditor completes audit and: 

 

Either: 

If no amendments are required, 

certifies the Annual Return and 

sends it back to the body for 

publishing by 15 September.  

 

 Or: 

If amendments are required, 

reports issues (including 

amendments) to the body. The 

body amends the Annual Return, 

the RFO re-certifies and the body 

re-approves before sending it back 

to the auditor. The auditor then 

certifies the Annual Return and 

sends it back to the body for 

publishing by 15 September. 

Please read the guidance on completing this Annual Return and complete all sections highlighted in red 
including the Annual Governance Statement. 

APPROVING THE ANNUAL RETURN 

There are two boxes for certification and approval by the body. The second box is only required  
if the annual return has to be amended as a result of the audit. You should only complete the top box before 
sending the form to the auditor. 

The committee must approve the annual return BEFORE the accounts and supporting documents are made 
available for public inspection under section 30 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004. 

The Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report is to be completed by the auditor acting on behalf 
of the Auditor General. It MUST NOT be completed by the Clerk/RFO, the Chair or the internal auditor. 

Audited and certified returns are sent back to the body for publication and display of the accounting statements,  
Annual Governance Statement and the Auditor General for Wales’ certificate and report. 

Page 51



 

2 

Accounting statements 2019-20 for: 

 

Name of body: COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM 

 

 Year ending Notes and guidance for compilers 

31 March 

2019 

(£) 

31 March 

2020 

(£) 

Please round all figures to nearest £.  

Do not leave any boxes blank and report £0 or nil balances. 

All figures must agree to the underlying financial records 

for the relevant year. 

Statement of income and expenditure/receipts and payments 

1. Balances 

brought forward 
1,258,713 1,755,451 Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year as 

recorded in the financial records. Must agree to line 7 of the 

previous year. 

2. (+) Income  

from local 

taxation/levy 

0 0 Total amount of income received/receivable in the year from 

local taxation (precept) or levy/contribution from principal bodies. 

3. (+) Total other 

receipts 
1,345,488 1,355,293 Total income or receipts recorded in the cashbook minus 

amounts included in line 2. Includes support, discretionary and 

revenue grants. 

4. (-) Staff costs (309,843) (315,092) Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf of  

all employees. Include salaries and wages, PAYE and NI 

(employees and employers), pension contributions and related 

expenses eg. termination costs. 

5. (-) Loan  

interest/capital 

repayments 

0 0 Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest made 

during the year on external borrowing (if any). 

6. (-) Total other 

payments 
(538,907) (742,000) Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cashbook 

minus staff costs (line 4) and loan interest/capital repayments 

(line 5). 

7. (=) Balances 

carried forward 
1,755,451 2,053,652 Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must equal 

(1+2+3) – (4+5+6). 

Statement of balances 

8.  (+) Debtors and 

stock balances 
179,179 181,223 Income and expenditure accounts only: Enter the value of 

debts owed to the body and stock balances held at the year-end. 

9. (+) Total  

cash and 

investments 

1,595,477 1.882,193 All accounts: The sum of all current and deposit bank 

accounts, cash holdings and investments held at 31 March. This 

must  

agree with the reconciled cashbook balance as per the bank 

reconciliation. 

10. (-) Creditors (19,205) (9,764) Income and expenditure accounts only: Enter the value of 

monies owed by the body (except borrowing) at the year-end. 

11. (=) Balances 

carried forward 
1,755,451 2,053,652 Total balances should equal line 7 above: Enter the total of 

(8+9-10). 

12. Total fixed 

assets and  

long-term assets 

4,214,263 4,711,470 The asset and investment register value of all fixed assets and 

any other long-term assets held as at 31 March.  

13. Total borrowing 0 0 The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans from 

third parties (including PWLB). 

Page 52



 

3 

Annual Governance Statement 

We acknowledge as the members of the Committee, our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of 

internal control, including the preparation of the accounting statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, with respect to the accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, that: 

 

 Agreed? ‘YES’ means that the Committee: PG Ref 

Yes No* 

1. We have put in place arrangements for: 

 effective financial management during the year; 

and 

 the preparation and approval of the accounting 

statements. 

  

Properly sets its budget and 

manages its money and prepares 

and approves its accounting 

statements as prescribed by law.  

6, 12 

2. We have maintained an adequate system of internal 

control, including measures designed to prevent  

and detect fraud and corruption, and reviewed its 

effectiveness. 

  

Made proper arrangements  

and accepted responsibility for 

safeguarding the public money  

and resources in its charge.  

6, 7 

3. We have taken all reasonable steps to assure  

ourselves that there are no matters of actual or 

potential non-compliance with laws, regulations and 

codes of practice that could have a significant 

financial effect on the ability of the Committee to 

conduct its business or on its finances. 

  

Has only done things that it has  

the legal power to do and has 

conformed to codes of practice and 

standards in the way it has done so. 

6 

4. We have provided proper opportunity for the  

exercise of electors’ rights in accordance with the 

requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 

Regulations 2014. 

  

Has given all persons interested  

the opportunity to inspect the body’s 

accounts as set out in the notice of 

audit. 

6, 23 

5. We have carried out an assessment of the risks 

facing the Committee and taken appropriate steps to 

manage those risks, including the introduction of 

internal controls and/or external insurance cover 

where required. 

  

Considered the financial and other 

risks it faces in the operation of  

the body and has dealt with them 

properly. 

6, 9 

6. We have maintained an adequate and effective 

system of internal audit of the accounting records  

and control systems throughout the year and have 

received a report from the internal auditor. 
  

Arranged for a competent person, 

independent of the financial controls 

and procedures, to give an objective 

view on whether these meet the 

needs of the body. 

6, 8 

7. We have considered whether any litigation,  

liabilities or commitments, events or transactions, 

occurring either during or after the year-end, have a 

financial impact on the Committee and, where 

appropriate, have included them on the accounting 

statements. 

  

Disclosed everything it should have 

about its business during the year 

including events taking place after 

the year-end if relevant. 

6 

8.  We have taken appropriate action on all matters 

raised in previous reports from internal and external 

audit. 
  

Considered and taken  

appropriate action to address 

issues/weaknesses brought to its 

attention by both the internal and 

external auditors. 

6, 8, 23 

 

* Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each ‘no’ response given; and describe what action is 

being taken to address the weaknesses identified. 

Page 53



 

4 

Committee approval and certification 

The Committee is responsible for the preparation of the accounting statements in accordance with the requirements of the 

Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 and for the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

Certification by the RFO 

I certify that the accounting statements contained in this Annual 

Return presents fairly the financial position of the Committee and 

its income and expenditure, or properly presents receipts and 

payments, as the case may be, for the year ended  

31 March 2020. 

Approval by the Committee 

I confirm that these accounting statements and  

Annual Governance Statement were approved by the 

Committee under minute reference: 

Insert minute reference and date of meeting 

RFO signature:  Chair of meeting signature:  

Name: Name:  

Date:  Date:  

Committee re-approval and re-certification (only required if the annual return has been amended at 

audit) 

Certification by the RFO 

I certify that the accounting statements contained in this Annual 

Return presents fairly the financial position of the Committee, and 

its income and expenditure, or properly presents receipts and 

payments, as the case may be, for the year ended  

31 March 2020. 

Approval by the Committee 

I confirm that these accounting statements and  

Annual Governance Statement were approved by the 

Committee under minute reference: 

Insert minute reference and date of meeting 

RFO signature: signature required Chair of meeting signature: signature required 

Name: name required Name: name required 

Date: dd/mm/yyyy Date: dd/mm/yyyy 

Page 54



 

5 

Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report 

The external auditor conducts the audit on behalf of, and in accordance with, guidance issued by the Auditor General 

for Wales. On the basis of their review of the Annual Return and supporting information, they report whether any 

matters that come to their attention give cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have 

not been met. 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2020 of: 

 

 

External auditor’s report 

[Except for the matters reported below]* On the basis of our review, in our opinion, the information contained in the Annual 

Return is in accordance with proper practices and no matters have come to our attention giving cause for concern that relevant 

legislation and regulatory requirements have not been met. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[[These matters along with]* Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the body and our 

recommendations for improvement are included in our report to the body dated _____________________.] 

Other matters and recommendations 

On the basis of our review, we draw the body’s attention to the following matters and recommendations which do not affect our 

audit opinion but should be addressed by the body. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Continue on a separate sheet if required.) 

 

External auditor’s name:  

SIGNATURE REQUIRED 

External auditor’s signature: 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales 

Date: DD/MM/YYYY 

* Delete as appropriate. 

Page 55



 

6 

Annual internal audit report to: 

 

Name of body: COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM 

 

The Committee’s internal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of risk,  

has included carrying out a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls expected  

to be in operation during the financial year ending 31 March 2020. 

The internal audit has been carried out in accordance with the Committee’s needs and planned coverage. On the 

basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit conclusions are summarised  

in this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control and the internal audit conclusions on whether,  

in all significant respects, the following control objectives were being achieved throughout the financial year to a 

standard adequate to meet the needs of the Committee. 

 Agreed? Outline of work undertaken as part of 

the internal audit (NB not required if 

detailed internal audit report presented 

to body) 

Yes No* N/A Not 

covered** 

1. Appropriate books of account have 

been properly kept throughout the 

year. 
    

All payments are made through the 

Councils bank account and ledger system. 

2. Financial regulations have been 

met, payments were supported by 

invoices, expenditure was approved 

and VAT was appropriately 

accounted for. 

    

All payments through the Council's 

financial system.  Sample testing of 

different suppliers confirmed payments 

and VAT have been accounted for 

correctly. 

3. The body assessed the significant 

risks to achieving its objectives  

and reviewed the adequacy of 

arrangements to manage these. 
    

Corporate Risk Management Policy and a 

Corporate risk assessment is in place. 

Risk Assessment procedure guidance for 

risks available to all Council departments. 

4. The annual precept/levy/resource 

demand requirement resulted from 

an adequate budgetary process, 

progress against the budget was 

regularly monitored, and reserves 

were appropriate. 

    

No precept. Budget and reserves are 

monitored centrally and reported to the 

Crematorium Joint Committee. 

5. Expected income was fully 

received, based on correct prices, 

properly recorded and promptly 

banked, and VAT was appropriately 

accounted for. 

    

Charges for the Crematorium were agreed 

by the Committee and income is recorded 

on Council’s central system. 

6. Petty cash payments were  

properly supported by receipts, 

expenditure was approved and  

VAT appropriately accounted for. 

    

No petty cash. 

7.  Salaries to employees and 

allowances to members were paid 

in accordance with minuted 

approvals, and PAYE and NI 

requirements were properly applied.  

    

Staff paid on NJC payscales via central 

payroll system.  Download for 2019/2020 

shows all staff paid on crematorium cost 

code were employed in roles that are 

related to the Crematorium.  

8. Asset and investment registers 

were complete, accurate,  

and properly maintained. 
    

Crematorium is included on central asset 

register. 

  

Page 56



 

7 

 Agreed? Outline of work undertaken as part of 

the internal audit (NB not required if 

detailed internal audit report presented 

to body) 

Yes No* N/A Not 

covered** 

9. Periodic and year-end bank account 

reconciliations were properly carried 

out.     

Crematorium use main Council bank 

account. Previous audits have confirmed 

the controls are robust. 

10. Accounting statements prepared 

during the year were prepared  

on the correct accounting basis 

(receipts and payments/income  

and expenditure), agreed with the 

cashbook, were supported by an 

adequate audit trail from underlying 

records, and where appropriate, 

debtors and creditors were properly 

recorded. 

    

Centralised main accounting audit 

performed annually and no relevant issues 

identified.  

 

For any risk areas identified by the Committee (list any other risk areas below or on separate sheets if needed) 

adequate controls existed: 

 Agreed? Outline of work undertaken as part of 

the internal audit (NB not required if 

detailed internal audit report presented 

to body) 

Yes No* N/A Not 

covered** 

11. Insert risk area 

 

 
    

Insert text 

12. Insert risk area 

 

 
    

Insert text 

13. Insert risk area 

 

 
    

Insert text 

* If the response is ‘no’, please state the implications and action being taken to address any weakness in control identified  

(add separate sheets if needed). 

** If the response is ‘not covered’, please state when the most recent internal audit work was done in this area and when it is  

next planned, or if coverage is not required, internal audit must explain why not. 

[My detailed findings and recommendations which I draw to the attention of the Committee are included in my detailed report to the 

Committee dated _____________________.] * Delete if no report prepared. 

Internal audit confirmation 

I/we confirm that as the Committee’s internal auditor, I/we have not been involved in a management or administrative role within the 

body (including preparation of the accounts) or as a member of the body during the financial years 2018-19 and 2019-20. I also 

confirm that there are no conflicts of interest surrounding my appointment. 

 

Name of person who carried out the internal audit: Joan Davies 

Signature of person who carried out the internal audit:       

Date: 19/06/2020 

Page 57



 

8 

Guidance notes on completing the Annual Return 
1. You must apply proper practices when preparing this annual return. Proper practices are set out in the 

Practitioners’ Guide.   

2. Make sure that the Annual Return is fully completed ie, no empty red boxes. Please avoid making any 

amendments to the completed return. If this is unavoidable, cross out the incorrect entries, make sure the 

amendments are drawn to the attention of the body, properly initialled and an explanation for them is provided 

to the external auditor. Please do not use correction fluid. Annual returns that are incomplete or contain 

unapproved and/or unexplained amendments or correction fluid will be returned unaudited and may incur 

additional costs. Ask your auditor for an electronic copy of the form if required. 

3. Use a second pair of eyes, perhaps the Chair or a member, to review your Annual Return for completeness 

before sending the original form to the auditor. 

4. Make sure that your accounting statements add up, that the balance carried forward from the previous year  

(line 7 of 2019) equals the balance brought forward in the current year (line 1 of 2020). Explain any differences 

between the 2019 figures on this annual return and the amounts recorded in last year’s annual return. 

5. Explain fully any significant variances in the accounting statements. Do not just send in a copy of your detailed 

accounting records instead of this explanation. The external auditor wants to know that you understand the 

reasons for all variances. Include a detailed analysis to support your explanation and be specific about the 

values of individual elements making up the variances. 

6. Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation you send to your auditor with the Annual Return covers  

all your bank accounts and cash balances. If there are no reconciling items, please state this and provide 

evidence of the bank balances. If your Committee holds any short-term investments, please note their value on  

the bank reconciliation. The auditor should also be able to agree your bank reconciliation to line 9 in the 

accounting statements. More help on bank reconciliations is available in the Practitioners’ Guide. 

7. Every committee must send to the external auditor, information to support the assertions made in the 

Annual Governance Statement even if you have not done so before. Your auditor will tell you what 

information you need to provide. Please read the audit notice carefully to ensure you include all the information 

the auditor has asked for.  You should send copies of the original records (certified by the Clerk and Chair as 

accurate copies) to the external auditor and not the original documents themselves. 

8. Please do not send the auditor any information that you are not specifically asked for. Doing so is not helpful.  

9. If the auditor has to review unsolicited information, repeat a request for information, receives an incomplete 

bank reconciliation or explanation of variances or receives original documents that must be returned, the auditor 

will incur additional costs for which they are entitled to charge additional fees. 

10. Please deal with all correspondence with the external auditor promptly. This will help you to meet your 

statutory obligations and will minimise the cost of the audit.  

11. Please note that if completing the electronic form, you must print the form for it to be certified by the 

RFO and signed by the Chair before it is sent to the auditor.  

 

Completion checklist – ‘No’ answers mean that you may not have met requirements Done? 

Initial submission to the external auditor Yes No 

Accounts Do the papers to be sent to the external auditor include an explanation of significant variations from 

last year to this year? 

  

Does the bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2020 agree to Line 9?   

Approval Has the RFO certified the accounting statements and Annual Governance Statement (Regulation 15 

(1)) no later than 15 June 2020? 

  

Has the body approved the accounting statements before 15 June 2020 and has Section 3 been 

signed and dated by the person presiding at the meeting at which approval was given? 

  

All 

sections 

Have all pink boxes in the accounting statements and Annual Governance Statement been 

completed and explanations provided where needed?  

  

Has all the information requested by the external auditor been sent with this Annual Return?  

Please refer to your notice of audit and any additional schedules provided by your external auditor. 

  

 

If accounts are amended after receipt of the Auditor General’s report on matters arising Yes No 

Accounts Have the amended accounting statements been approved and Section 3 re-signed and re-dated as 

evidence of the Committee’s approval of the amendments before re-submission to the auditor? 
  

 

Page 58


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Adolygiad Blynyddol o Amcanion Cynllun Busnes 2019/20
	5 Cyfleusterau cwrt blodau
	6 Gwobr Baner Werdd
	7 Gwasanaeth Nadolig
	8 Pandemig covid-19
	9 Datganiad Cyfrifyddu Blynyddol 2019-20 a Datganiad Monitro Refeniw 1 Ebrill i 30 Mehefin 20
	Appendix 1 Finance WAO Letter
	Coychurch Crematorium Committee Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2020
	Audit certificate and opinion
	Qualification issues
	Misstatements in the Statement of Accounts
	Other matters not affecting our opinion


	Appendix 2 Finance 4-9-20


